

# Having your labour induced Maternity Department Patient Information Leaflet



# Introduction

This leaflet explains what induction of labour means and what it will involve. If all your questions are not answered, or you feel anxious about any aspect of this, please do talk to your midwife or obstetrician (doctor who specialises in pregnancy).

# What is an induction of labour?

Labour is a natural process that usually starts on its own between 37 and 42 weeks of your pregnancy. Sometimes we recommend assisting the natural process of labour by inducing or starting labour off. This is referred to as induction of labour.

Induction of labour can take some time to actually get your labour started and; therefore, it can be longer before you have your baby. However, some women can experience rapid progress, once labour is established.

# Why may I be offered an induction of labour?

Induction of labour is considered necessary:

- To avoid a pregnancy lasting longer than 42 weeks
- If your waters break but labour does not start on its own
- If there are problems in pregnancy which can affect either you or your baby's wellbeing

Your doctor or midwife will discuss with you.

## Where will I be induced?

Induction of labour takes place in the Maternity Unit located on the 2nd floor in the east wing of Russells Hall Hospital.

# What happens on the day of my induction?

As we are unable to predict the workload in the Maternity Unit, women who are booked for induction of labour must contact the Maternity Unit before travelling to the hospital.

#### Please telephone the Maternity Unit on:

#### 01384 456111 ext. 3430 at 10am

This telephone call should be made on the day of the planned induction to check that admission is possible.

If we ask you to come in, we know that delays can cause anxiety but please bear in mind that it is possible that your induction may not start as soon as you arrive at the unit. It may have to be delayed until later in the day, or occasionally be postponed until the following day.

If there is not a bed available at that time, we may advise you to come in for monitoring of your baby's heart rate either in Maternity Triage or on the Pregnancy Day Assessment Unit.

If, after this monitoring, admission is still not possible, we will advise you return home and to call later. A midwife may contact you before this agreed time. We apologise in

advance for any inconvenience this may cause. When you attend for induction, remember to bring your hospital bag & personal belongings in with you.

#### What will happen before my induction begins?

Following discussion, the midwife will undertake a full examination. This will include: measuring your blood pressure and pulse rate, feeling your abdomen, monitoring your baby's heart rate and a vaginal examination. This will help us decide the best method of induction for you and your baby.

#### What methods are used to induce labour?

There are several methods used which are described in this section. After our examination of you, we will discuss with you which we think is the best one for you and your baby. You can also tell us if you have a preference and then make a decision about how you would like to continue with the induction process.

#### Membrane sweeping

This can only be performed after 37 weeks. It may be offered by your community midwife or at an outpatient appointment before you attend the hospital for a planned induction of labour.

This has been shown to increase the chances of labour starting naturally within the following 48 hours. It can reduce the need for other methods of induction of labour to be used.

Membrane sweeping involves your midwife or doctor placing a gloved finger just inside your cervix and making a circular, sweeping movement to separate the membranes from the cervix (neck of the womb).

Membrane sweeping may cause some discomfort or light bleeding. If you have any questions after having a membrane sweep, please call Maternity Triage on **01384 456111** ext. **3053**.

## **Hormonal Induction of Labour**

The side effects of medication can affect people in different ways. The following are some of the side effects that are known to be associated with Propess; it does not mean that all people using this medicine will experience these. Possible side effects are abdominal discomfort, nausea and vomiting, diarrhoea, abnormally strong contractions of the womb which may cause problems with the baby's heart rate, vaginal swelling and discomfort or irritation.

#### **Propess (prostaglandin) pessary**

This helps to soften and open your cervix, usually over a 24 hour period. Some women will go into labour within this time frame but most of the time it just causes a

few mild contractions which open the cervix enough that we are able to break the waters.

We insert the pessary into your vagina and monitor the baby's heart rate continuously for a minimum of 40 minutes, during which time you will need to remain on the bed. After this initial monitoring, you will be able to move around normally.

Unless you have started labouring prior, after 24 hours you will have another vaginal examination to assess your cervix to see if it is possible for us to break your waters. If not, we may leave the Propess to continue to work for another eight hours.

After using Propess, it is very common to experience tightening of the womb, sometimes with or without discomfort and pain. Often this is not labour but the effects of the cervix absorbing the pessary. It is very normal.

## **Non-Hormonal Induction of Labour**

Non-hormonal methods of induction are generally considered as a safer option for you and your baby, as they do not carry the potential side effects that medical drugs carry. In our trust we offer Dilapan (see below) which combines efficacy, safety and patient satisfaction and because it has no drug or hormones in it, it can be used safely even if you have other medical conditions. It is less likely that you will have strong uterine contractions whilst your cervix is ripening, which makes this early part of induction of labour safer and more comfortable for you and your baby.

#### **Dilapan Rods**

Dilapan-S® is a slim rod made of a synthetic firm gel. Usually 3 - 5 rods are gently inserted together into the opening of the cervix and absorb the fluid from the surrounding tissue. Each thin rod will gently expand over 12 hours which will dilate and soften the cervix. Cervical ripening with Dilapan-S® is very safe for you and your baby.

## Once the cervix is open...

#### **Breaking your waters**

If it is possible to do so, your midwife may discuss with you whether we should break your waters. This is known medically as artificial rupture of membranes (ARM).

In order to have this done, you will need a vaginal examination. A slim, plastic hook will be used to make a hole in the bag of waters. This will not harm your baby but it can be uncomfortable for you.

This may be during the first vaginal examination or after using prostaglandin or dilapan rods. If you have your waters broken, your baby's heart rate will be monitored for a minimum of 40 minutes afterwards. Sometimes, once the waters have been broken, the pressure of baby's head against the cervix stimulates labour to start. You can discuss with the midwife/doctor if you would like to wait for some time once the waters have been broken to see if this happens.

# Syntocinon (artificial oxytocin drip)

When your waters are broken, if labour has not started after the planned time, we may suggest using a Syntocinon drip (infusion). Syntocinon is an artificial form of a hormone called oxytocin that is normally produced in labour. It will help to get contractions started.

It is given through a vein in your arm, which means you will need a cannula. Once you are having Syntocinon, your baby's heart rate will be monitored continuously until birth, although this should not stop you being able to change position during your labour.

Occasionally, oxytocin can cause the uterus to contract too much. If this happens, you will be asked to lie on your left side and the drip will be adjusted or stopped. Another drug may be given to reduce the contractions. If your induction is with oxytocin, you will be unable to have a water birth. The contractions caused by the hormone drip are strong, and research suggests, more painful than spontaneous contractions. For this reason, patient's being induced are more likely to require an epidural anaesthesia. It also carries a very small risk of uterine rupture or placental abruption. We will monitor you closely and if this happens our midwives and doctors are trained to manage these complications.

# Can my birth partner be with me?

Unfortunately, your birth partner cannot stay with you during the induction period. Your birth partner can attend once labour has become established or you are having your waters broken. Your midwife will tell you when this has happened.

# What happens if the prostaglandins don't open my cervix?

After being given prostaglandin, some women do not go into labour and are not able to have their waters broken. In these cases, women may need to have a caesarean section delivery of their baby. This will be fully discussed with you by a senior obstetrician.

# Can I decide not to be induced?

Yes of course. It is your choice. However, we recommend you discuss this decision with an obstetrician and midwife.

# Can I find out more?

You can find out more from the following:

• National Institute for Health and Clinical Excellence (NICE) (2008) Induction of labour. Information for people who use NHS services. Clinical Guideline 70. London: NICE

http://www.nice.org.uk/nicemedia/pdf/CG70publicinfo.pdf

Labour – Active Management and Induction

http://www.patient.co.uk/doctor/Labour-Active-Management-and-Induction.htm

WHO recommendations for Induction of labour (2011)
<a href="http://whglibdoc.who.int/publications/2011/9789241501156">http://whglibdoc.who.int/publications/2011/9789241501156</a> eng.pdf

If you have any questions, or if there is anything you do not understand about this leaflet, please contact:

Your community midwife; or Maternity Triage on 01384 456111 ext. 3053

Russells Hall Hospital switchboard number: 01384 456111

#### This leaflet can be downloaded or printed from:

http://dgft.nhs.uk/services-and-wards/maternity/

If you have any feedback on this patient information leaflet, please email dgft.patient.information@nhs.net

This leaflet can be made available in large print, audio version and in other languages, please call 0800 073 0510.

للحصول على هذه النشرة بحجم أكبر، وعلى شكل إصدار صوتي و بلغات أخرى، الرجاء الاتصال بالرقم 08000730510.

此宣传单可提供大字版本、音频版本和其它语言版本,请拨打电话: 0800 073 0510。

Ulotka dostępna jest również w dużym druku, wersji audio lub w innym języku. W tym celu zadzwoń pod numer 0800 073 0510.

ਇਹ ਪਰਚਾ ਵੱਡੇ ਅੱਖਰਾਂ, ਬੋਲ ਕੇ ਰੀਕਾਰਡ ਕੀਤਾ ਹੋਇਆ ਅਤੇ ਦੂਸਰੀਆਂ ਭਾਸ਼ਾਵਾਂ ਵਿਚ ਵੀ ਪ੍ਰਾਪਤ ਹੋ ਸਕਦਾ ਹੈ, 0800 073 0510 ਤੇ ਫੋਨ ਕਰੋ ਜੀ।

Aceasta brosura poate fi pusa la dispozitie tiparita cu caractere mari, versiune audio sau in alte limbi, pentru acest lucru va rugam sunati la 0800 073 0510.

یہ کتابچہ آپ کو بڑے حروف کی لکھائی ، سمعی صورت اور دیگر زبانوں میں مہیا کیا جا سکتا ہے۔ ہے برائے مہربانی فون نمبر 08000730510پر رابطہ کریں۔